## 



# CITY OF ANN ARBOR – PARKS ADVISORY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES June 15, 2010

The regular meeting of the Park Advisory Commission was held on Tuesday, June 15, 2010 at 4:00 p.m.at the CTN Studio 2805 S. Industrial

I. The meeting was called to order at 4:10 p.m. by Chair J. Grand.

II. Roll Call:

Members Present: (9) J. Grand, J. Lawter, S. Offen, (arrived at meeting

at 4:26 p.m.) T. Berla (arrived at meeting at 4:27

p.m.), D. Barrett, G. Nystuen, D. Chapman,

K. Levin (arrived at meeting at 4:25p.m.), T. Doyle

Ex-Officio Members Present: (2) M. Anglin, C. Taylor

Ex- Officio Members Absent: (0) None.

Members Absent: (0) None

Staff Present: (5) C. Smith, J. Straw, M. Notarianni, D. Borneman,

L. Bowen

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – Commissioner Grand asked for approval of the agenda.

**J. Lawter** moved, supported by **D. Chapman** to approve the agenda.

PUBLIC COMMENTARY - AGENDA ITEMS (3 Minutes per Speaker)

**Glenn Thompson** spoke on the proposed Fuller Road Station.

**James D' Amour** spoke on the proposed Fuller Road Station.

**Ethel Potts** spoke on the proposed Fuller Road Station.

**John Satarino** spoke on the proposed Fuller Road Station.

**Sue Perry** spoke on the proposed Fuller Road Station, also expressing displeasure regarding the care of specific parks.

**Leslie Morris** spoke on the proposed Fuller Road Station.

Bill Cassebaum spoke on the Huron Hills Golf Course RFP.

Larry Argetsinge spoke on the Huron Hills Golf Course RFP.

**J. Lumm** on the performance of Huron Hills Golf Course.

- **B. Mikas** spoke on the proposed Fuller Road Station.
- **R. Mitchell** spoke on revenue issues regarding the parks.

### A - APPROVAL OF MINUTES

**Commissioner Grand** asked for a motion to approve the current minutes. T. Berla moved, supported by K. Levin to approve the minutes of May 18, 2010 as written.

#### **SPECIALPRESENTATIONS**

#### **Farmers Market**

- **M. Notarianni** gave an update and overview of the Farmer's Market including the number of participating vendors, events and the increase of visitors; also informing the Commission of the improvements and upgrades that have taken place at the site.
- M. Notarianni shared information regarding the increased participation with the food assistance program which allows those of all incomes to purchase fresh produce; tokens can be purchased with an EBT Bridge card. This program has also increased revenue at the market.
- **P. Pollack** spoke on the care and growth of the Public Market; P. Pollack also explained the mission of the Public Market Advisory Commission.
- **S. Offen** asked for an explanation regarding the inspection process of the vendors.
- **M. Notarianni** explained there is a contracted individual that is responsible for the inspections.

#### **B - UNFINISHED BUSINESS**

#### **C - NEW BUSINESS**

- **C-1** PAC Resolution Regarding the Proposed Fuller Road Station
  - **J. Grand** explained the intent of the proposed Resolution that would be presented to the Commission.
  - **C. Smith** explained the process regarding the Resolution that will be presented by J. Grand, and discuss the alternative Resolution as an amendment afterwards. C. Smith also explained the plans for this project would go to the Planning Department for site review; afterwards to City Council; in addition to the two previous steps, there will be a public hearing.
  - **C. Taylor** gave an in depth explanation to the Commission regarding the process involving City Council and the Resolution pertaining to the proposed project.
  - **S.** Offen expressed concern that the Commission has been excluded from initial discussions regarding the proposed project.

- C. Taylor stated he agreed that there are uncertainties regarding this process.

  J. Grand expressed concern with the inconsistencies surrounding the proposed project.

  M. Anglin stated it would have been advantageous to have had clarification pertaining to the timeline of the proposed project.
  - **D. Chapman** stated the presentations shown to the Commission seemed to
  - imply the proposed project was moving forward.
  - **J. Grand** welcomed the new Park Advisory Commission member, Tim Doyle, and proceeded to read the proposed Resolution.

## **Resolution on the Proposed Fuller Road Station**

- Whereas, the Park Advisory Commission (PAC) has been briefed on numerous occasions about plans for the Fuller Road Station (FRS) by project managers and City staff.
- Whereas, in spite of such briefings, the overall scope of the proposed project, including the timeline and decision-making process by City staff and their partners continues to change and remains unclear.
- Whereas, the opportunity for direct input from the public regarding the direction and overall desirability of the FRS has not been commensurate with the scale of the proposed project.
- Whereas, one of PAC's roles is to make recommendation concerning the use of parkland.
- Whereas, the City of Ann Arbor and the University of Michigan have jointly proposed building an approximately 1,020 car parking structure, which represents an increase of 770 parking spaces.
- Whereas, building the proposed FRS will create a permanent structure on parkland.
- Whereas, the Parks and Recreation Department currently receives \$31, 057 (FY 2010) annually from the University of Michigan for 250 parking spots in the South Lot, and according to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the University is slated to receive only \$24,846 with a 3% yearly increase for almost 800 spots following completion of the proposed parking structure in 2012.
- Whereas, it is unlikely that the University of Michigan will continue to lease the North Lots on Fuller Road following the completion of the proposed parking garage, resulting in an additional annual loss to the Parks budget of approximately \$38,495 (FY 2010).
- Whereas, the potential loss of revenue (totaling \$44,706 in FY 2010 dollars) from the University of Michigan will result in the Parks and Recreation Department having to make additional cuts to an already stretched and shrinking budget.
- Whereas, according to its terms, and pursuant to information presented to PAC, the November 2009 MOU is not a final agreement with the University of Michigan, including its terms with respect to compensation to the Parks and Recreation Department.

Resolved, that while PAC is generally in favor of the goals of an intermodal transit station, concerns remain about the overall benefit to park users of the proposed Fuller Road Station as a stand-alone Phase One project.

Resolved, that if such plans are approved, PAC urges Council to negotiate the final agreement with the University of Michigan to include a significant increase in revenue to the Parks and Recreation Department above and beyond that currently agreed upon in the MOU. Further, PAC recommends that the final agreement should indemnify the Parks and Recreation Department for any shortfall in revenue caused by the University's decision to discontinue leasing the North lots on Fuller Road.

Resolved, PAC recommends that the final Parking Services Agreement will be published at least two weeks prior to Council approval of the proposed FRS.

Resolved, PAC recommends that all revenue generated from lessees of the proposed transit center should be dedicated exclusively to the Parks and Recreation Department.

Resolved, PAC requests that project staff will present PAC with a clear project schedule for the proposed FRS, with future updates as necessary.

Resolved, that an effort be made by project staff to provide opportunities for PAC and the public to give meaningful input into all future significant decisions regarding the proposed FRS.

Prepared by: Julie Grand, Gwen Nystuen, and Sam Offen; Park Advisory Commission Submitted by: Park Advisory Commission

Date: June 15, 2010

S. Offen moved, supported by D. Chapman to discuss the Resolution.

**J. Lawter** asked for permission to abstain from voting on this Resolution due to affiliation with the University of Michigan.

**T. Berla** stated he had written an alternate Resolution to replace the original proposed Resolution which he read to the Commission.

**T. Berla** moved, supported by **G. Nystuen** to discuss the alternative to the original Resolution

**G. Nystuen** stated she agreed with both resolutions and T. Berla's Resolution could be incorporated into the language of the original Resolution.

**S. Offen** stated he felt T. Berla's Resolution held a positive tone.

**T. Doyle** asked what timeline constraints the City and City Council are under regarding seeking Federal funding.

**J. Grand** stated this timeline is ongoing and incomplete.

**C. Smith** stated making reference to the memo of understanding would be helpful in understanding the timeline constraints. C. Smith read a portion of the memo of understanding to the Commission.

209				
210		Ayes:	(5)	G. Nystuen, T. Berla, S. Offen,
211		1.,001	(-)	D. Barrett, T. Doyle
212				
213		Nays:	(3)	J. Grand, D. Chapman, K. Levin
214				
215		Abstained	(1)	J. Lawter
216				
217		Absent:	(0)	None
218				
219				<ul> <li>Motion Passed – to adopt the alternative Resolution on</li> </ul>
220		the Propose	d Fulle	r Road Station
221				
222				the Commission to discuss adopting the alternative
223		Resolution w	vith am	endments.
224				
225		G. Nystuer	<b>n</b> mov	ed, supported by K. Levin to discuss the alternative
226		Resolution w	vith am	endments.
227				
228		G. Nystuen	sugge	ested amending by including the sixth (6 <sup>th</sup> ), seventh (7 <sup>th</sup> ),
229		eighth (8 <sup>th</sup> ),	ninth (	(9 <sup>th</sup> ) and tenth (10 <sup>th</sup> ) "Whereas" clauses from the "original"
230		• , ,		ted and read by J. Grand) to be added in the 'alternative"
231		,	•	ted by T. Berla)
232		(1		,
233			Ayes	: (7) J. Grand, G. Nystuen, S. Offen,
234			,	D. Barrett, D. Chapman, K. Levin T. Doyle
235				
		Navs:	(1)	T. Berla
236		Nays:	(1)	T. Berla
236 237		•		
236 237 238		Nays: Abstained	(1) (1)	T. Berla J. Lawter
236 237 238 239		Abstained	(1)	J. Lawter
236 237 238 239 240		•		
236 237 238 239 240 241		Abstained Absent:	(1) (0)	J. Lawter None
236 237 238 239 240 241 242		Abstained Absent: On a roll co	(1) (0) all vote	J. Lawter  None  - Motion Passed – to adopt the amendments to the
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243		Abstained Absent: On a roll co	(1) (0) all vote	J. Lawter None
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244		Abstained Absent: On a roll calternative R	(1) (0) all vote Resolut	J. Lawter  None  e – Motion Passed – to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245		Abstained Absent: On a roll callernative Realternative Rea	(1) (0) all vote Resolution	J. Lawter  None  e – Motion Passed – to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.  cussion regarding the amendments in the proposed
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246		Abstained Absent: On a roll calternative Resolution,	(1) (0) all vote Resolution	J. Lawter  None  e – Motion Passed – to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247		Abstained Absent: On a roll callernative Realternative Rea	(1) (0) all vote Resolution	J. Lawter  None  e – Motion Passed – to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.  cussion regarding the amendments in the proposed
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 248		Abstained  Absent:  On a roll contained in a roll of a roll of a roll of alternative in a roll of alternative in a roll of alternative in a roll of a roll o	(1) (0) all vote Resoluti er disc J. Gra	J. Lawter  None  e – Motion Passed – to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.  cussion regarding the amendments in the proposed and called for a roll call vote to adopt the alternative
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 248 249		Abstained  Absent:  On a roll contained in a roll of a roll of a roll of alternative in a roll of alternative in a roll of alternative in a roll of a roll o	(1) (0) all vote Resoluti er disc J. Gra	J. Lawter  None  e – Motion Passed – to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.  cussion regarding the amendments in the proposed
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 248 249 250	Whereas the	Abstained Absent: On a roll of alternative Resolution, Resolution. Resolution	(1) (0)  all vote Resolution of disconnection J. Grain on the	None  e – Motion Passed – to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.  cussion regarding the amendments in the proposed and called for a roll call vote to adopt the alternative  Proposed Fuller Road Station
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 248 249 250 251		Abstained Absent: On a roll calternative Resolution, Resolution. Resolution Resolution	(1) (0)  all vote Resolute or disc J. Gra  on the	None  e - Motion Passed - to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.  cussion regarding the amendments in the proposed and called for a roll call vote to adopt the alternative  Proposed Fuller Road Station  mmission (PAC) supports the establishment of an
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 248 249 250 251 252	intermodal tr	Abstained Absent: On a roll of alternative R After further Resolution, Resolution. Resolution Parks Advis	(1) (0)  all vote Resolute or disc J. Gra  on the	None  e – Motion Passed – to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.  cussion regarding the amendments in the proposed and called for a roll call vote to adopt the alternative  Proposed Fuller Road Station
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 248 249 250 251 252 253		Abstained Absent: On a roll of alternative R After further Resolution, Resolution. Resolution Parks Advis	(1) (0)  all vote Resolute or disc J. Gra  on the	None  e - Motion Passed - to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.  cussion regarding the amendments in the proposed and called for a roll call vote to adopt the alternative  Proposed Fuller Road Station  mmission (PAC) supports the establishment of an
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 248 249 250 251 252 253 254	intermodal tr transportatio	Abstained  Absent:  On a roll callernative Resolution, Resolution.  Resolution Parks Advisors ansportation son, and,	(1) (0) all vote Resolution J. Gra on the cory Constation	None  e – Motion Passed – to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.  cussion regarding the amendments in the proposed and called for a roll call vote to adopt the alternative  Proposed Fuller Road Station  mmission (PAC) supports the establishment of an in Ann Arbor to promote the development of alternative
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 248 249 250 251 252 253 254 255	intermodal tr transportatio Whereas PA	Abstained Absent: On a roll of alternative R After further Resolution, Resolution. Resolution e Parks Advis ansportation sin, and, C's duties inc	(1) (0) all vote Resolution J. Gra on the sory Constation	None  e – Motion Passed – to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.  cussion regarding the amendments in the proposed and called for a roll call vote to adopt the alternative  Proposed Fuller Road Station  mmission (PAC) supports the establishment of an in Ann Arbor to promote the development of alternative  roviding a forum for advice and public input to the city
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 248 249 250 251 252 253 254 255 256	intermodal tr transportatio Whereas PA	Abstained Absent: On a roll of alternative R After further Resolution, Resolution. Resolution e Parks Advis ansportation sin, and, C's duties inc	(1) (0) all vote Resolution J. Gra on the sory Constation	None  e – Motion Passed – to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.  cussion regarding the amendments in the proposed and called for a roll call vote to adopt the alternative  Proposed Fuller Road Station  mmission (PAC) supports the establishment of an in Ann Arbor to promote the development of alternative
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 248 249 250 251 252 253 254 255 256 257	intermodal tr transportatio Whereas PA council on m	Abstained  Absent:  On a roll of alternative Resolution, Resolution.  Resolution Parks Advisansportation and, C's duties incoatters relating	(1) (0)  all vote Resolution  on the cory Constation  clude property to the	None  e – Motion Passed – to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.  cussion regarding the amendments in the proposed and called for a roll call vote to adopt the alternative  Proposed Fuller Road Station  mmission (PAC) supports the establishment of an in Ann Arbor to promote the development of alternative  roviding a forum for advice and public input to the city parks system, and,
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 248 249 250 251 252 253 254 255 256 257 258	intermodal tr transportatio Whereas PA council on m	Abstained Absent: On a roll of alternative R After further Resolution, Resolution. Resolution Parks Advis ansportation on and, C's duties incompatters relating acconstruction	(1) (0) all vote Resolute or disc J. Gra  on the cory Co station clude pro g to the	None  e - Motion Passed - to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.  cussion regarding the amendments in the proposed and called for a roll call vote to adopt the alternative  Proposed Fuller Road Station  mmission (PAC) supports the establishment of an in Ann Arbor to promote the development of alternative  roviding a forum for advice and public input to the city parks system, and,  building for non-park use on park land is a large and
236 237 238 239 240 241 242 243 244 245 246 247 248 249 250 251 252 253 254 255 256 257	intermodal tr transportatio Whereas PA council on m	Abstained Absent: On a roll of alternative R After further Resolution, Resolution. Resolution Parks Advis ansportation on and, C's duties incompatters relating acconstruction	(1) (0) all vote Resolute or disc J. Gra  on the cory Co station clude pro g to the	None  e – Motion Passed – to adopt the amendments to the ion on the Proposed Fuller Road Station.  cussion regarding the amendments in the proposed and called for a roll call vote to adopt the alternative  Proposed Fuller Road Station  mmission (PAC) supports the establishment of an in Ann Arbor to promote the development of alternative  roviding a forum for advice and public input to the city parks system, and,

Whereas, building the proposed FRS will create a permanent structure on parkland, and,

Whereas, the Parks and Recreation Department currently receives \$31, 057 (FY 2010) annually from the University of Michigan for 250 parking spots in the South Lot, and according to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the University is slated to receive only \$24,846 with a 3% yearly increase for almost 800 spots following completion of the proposed parking structure in 2012, and,

Whereas, it is unlikely that the University of Michigan will continue to lease the North Lots on Fuller Road following the completion of the proposed parking garage, resulting in an additional annual loss to the Parks budget of approximately \$38,495 (FY 2010), and,

Whereas, the potential loss of revenue (totaling \$44,706 in FY 2010 dollars) from the University of Michigan will result in the Parks and Recreation Department having to make additional cuts to an already stretched and shrinking budget, and,

Whereas, according to its terms, and pursuant to information presented to PAC, the November 2009 MOU is not a final agreement with the University of Michigan, including its terms with respect to compensation to the Parks and Recreation Department, and,

Be it therefore resolved that PAC urges the city council and staff to promote maximum transparency in the development of any such project. Specifically, PAC urges the staff and council to make public a complete plan for the development of the project, including which features will be part of the each phase and the details of any significant proposed agreements such as the Parking Services Agreement. Further, PAC urges that such publication include a full presentation at a regular televised PAC meeting, in such a way that PAC commissioners have an opportunity to ask questions, and that this PAC meeting be a least one month prior to any city council vote which could commit the city to building on park land.

Be it further resolved that PAC urges the city council and staff to insure that any use of the land in Fuller Park for non park uses such as a transit station or parking structure results in a net increase in park system revenue.

Ayes: (8) J. Grand, G. Nystuen, S. Offen, T. Berla D. Barrett, D. Chapman, K. Levin T. Doyle

Nays: (0) None

Abstained (1) J. Lawter

Absent: (0) None

On a roll call vote – **Motion Passed** – to adopt the alternative Resolution on the Proposed Fuller Road Station with amendments stated above and agreed upon by the Park Advisory Commission

# D - <u>COMMISSION PROPOSED BUSINESS</u>

312 **G. Nystuen** mentioned receiving communication regarding the bike trails and how the 313 recreational aspect may be impacted with the proposed Fuller Road Transit project. 314 315 **T. Berla** suggested the bicycling plan/trail be incorporated in a Resolution. 316 317 C. Smith stated staff will review the information in the Pros Plan and will update the 318 Commission. 319 320 **E - REPORT FROM PARKS AND RECREATION MANAGER** 321 322 C. Smith stated July 1, 2010 the fiscal year 2011 budget will go into effect and 323 trimming of the parks will resume. 324 325 C. Smith explained the RFP process regarding the Huron Hills Golf Course to the 326 Commission. 327 The Argo Canoe Livery RFP is expected to be issued by Aug 1, 2010 for the repair of 328 the toe drains and/or reconstruction of the mill race 329 330 331 The Volunteer Outreach Coordinator position that was mentioned at the previous 332 meeting is close to being posted. 333 334 F -REPORT FROM MANAGER OF FIELD OPERATIONS 335 336 REPORT FROM RECREATION ADVISORY COMMISSION 337 REPORTS FROM RELEVANT COMMISSIONS, COMMITTEES, BOARDS AND/OR TASK 338 H -339 **FORCES** 340 **I** -341 PUBLIC COMMENTARY – GENERAL (3 Minutes per Speaker) 342 343 **L. A. Bullington** spoke on the proposed Fuller Road Station. 344 345 **G. Thompson** spoke on the use of park land. 346 347 E. Potts complimented the Commission on their diligence throughout the process surrounding the 348 proposed Fuller Road Station. 349 350 J -**CLOSED SESSION TO DEAL WITH PRIVELEDGED CLIENT ATTORNEY INFORMATION** 351 352 **K** -**TRANSMITTALS** 353 K-1 354 City Council Items Update 355 356 K-2 Park Project Update 357 358 K-3 City of Ann Arbor 2008 – 2013 Park Maintenance and Capital 359 Improvements Millage Status

360 361

362

363